
 

 

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH 
CITY COUNCIL 

  NOVEMBER 30, 2023 

 

 

  

 Council Meeting Room Regular Meeting 7:00 PM 

7224 GA HIGHWAY 21 
PORT WENTWORTH, GA  31407 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 11/29/2023 8:24 AM Page 1   

1. PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. ROLL CALL - CLERK OF COUNCIL 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

4. RECOGNITION OF SPECIAL GUESTS 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS - REGISTERED SPEAKERS 

6. ELECTIONS & APPOINTMENTS 

7. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

A. Regular Council Meeting Minutes - October 26, 2023 

8. COMMUNICATIONS & PETITIONS 

9. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

10. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Well Permit Application for Mrs. Tina Newman at 711 Highway 30 

B. Well Permit Application for Mrs. Jackeline Cerezo at 368 Rice Hope Plantation Rd 

11. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

12. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

13. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Special Use Permit Application submitted by TR Long Engineering, P.C., on behalf of 

Clifton Landfill Inc, for PIN # 7-0913-01-010 (Clifton Blvd.) for outside storage for the 
5.01 acres site in a I-1 (Industrial) Zoning District 

 

➢Public Hearing 
➢Action 

B. Site Plan Review Application submitted by Clifton Landfill Inc., for PIN # 70913 01010 
(Clifton Blvd) for a General Development Site Plan to allow a outdoor storage area in a I-
1 (Industrial) Zoning district. 

C. Fourth Amendment to the 2001 Water Service Agreement 

14. RESOLUTIONS/ORDINANCES/PROCLAMATIONS 



Agenda City Council November 30, 2023 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 11/29/2023 8:24 AM Page 2   

A. Amending Chapter 17.1 Human Resources Policy - 1st Reading 
 

➢Public Hearing 
➢Action 

B. Street Parking Ordinance- 1st Reading 
 

➢Public Hearing 

➢Action 

C. Zoning Map Amendment Application submitted by Steven & Janet Hester for PIN # 70978 
05016 (440 Meinhard Rd) to Rezone from R-1 (Single-Family Residential) to C-2 
(Community Business) Zoning District (1st Reading) 

 

➢Public Hearing 
➢Action 

15. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

A. Litigation 

B. Personnel 

C. Real Estate 

16. ADJOURNMENT 



 City Council Meeting: 11/30/23 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Public Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Planning/Zoning Item 
  Prepared By: Omar Senati-Martinez 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Omar Senati-Martinez 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2905) DOC ID: 2905  

Updated: 11/21/2023 11:01 AM by Omar Senati-Martinez  Page 1 

Well Permit Application for Mrs. Tina Newman at 711 Highway 
30 

Issue/Item: Well Permit Application for Mrs. Tina Newman at 711 Highway 30 

 

Background: Currently Mrs. Tina Newman is using a shared private well for water to the 

property. The current shared well is located on the next door property and has been sold. 

Tina Newman is requesting to install a well on property. 

 

Facts and Findings: Mrs. Tina Newman does not have access to City utilities at 711 

Highway 30.  Tina Newman has retained a well driller who will, upon City approval, install 

the a new well on her  property. 

 

Funding: N/A 

 

Recommendation: Approval 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• 711 Hwy 30 well permit (PDF) 

10.A

Packet Pg. 3



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 4

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

11
 H

w
y 

30
 w

el
l p

er
m

it
  (

29
05

 :
 7

11
 H

w
y 

30
 W

el
l P

er
m

it
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 5

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

11
 H

w
y 

30
 w

el
l p

er
m

it
  (

29
05

 :
 7

11
 H

w
y 

30
 W

el
l P

er
m

it
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

11
 H

w
y 

30
 w

el
l p

er
m

it
  (

29
05

 :
 7

11
 H

w
y 

30
 W

el
l P

er
m

it
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

11
 H

w
y 

30
 w

el
l p

er
m

it
  (

29
05

 :
 7

11
 H

w
y 

30
 W

el
l P

er
m

it
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

11
 H

w
y 

30
 w

el
l p

er
m

it
  (

29
05

 :
 7

11
 H

w
y 

30
 W

el
l P

er
m

it
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

11
 H

w
y 

30
 w

el
l p

er
m

it
  (

29
05

 :
 7

11
 H

w
y 

30
 W

el
l P

er
m

it
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



 City Council Meeting: 11/30/23 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Public Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Planning/Zoning Item 
  Prepared By: Omar Senati-Martinez 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Omar Senati-Martinez 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2906) DOC ID: 2906  

Updated: 11/21/2023 11:16 AM by Omar Senati-Martinez  Page 1 

Well Permit Application for Mrs. Jackeline Cerezo at 368 Rice 
Hope Plantation Rd 

Issue/Item: Well Permit Application for Mrs. Jackeline Cerezo at 368 Rice Hope Plantation 

Rd 

 

Background: Mrs. Jacqueline Cerezo just purchased a lot located on Rice Hope Plantation 

Rd. and is seeking approval for a well. 

 

Facts and Findings: Mrs. Jacqueline Cerezo does not have access to City utilities at 368 

Rice Hope Plantation Rd. Mrs. Jacqueline Cerezo has retained a well driller who will, upon 

City approval, install the a new well on her  property. 

 

Funding: N/A 

 

Recommendation: Approval 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• 368 Rice Hope Plantation Rd well permit (PDF) 

10.B

Packet Pg. 10



10.B.a

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
 w

el
l p

er
m

it
  (

29
06

 :
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
. W

el
l P

er
m

it
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



10.B.a

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
 w

el
l p

er
m

it
  (

29
06

 :
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
. W

el
l P

er
m

it
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



10.B.a

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
 w

el
l p

er
m

it
  (

29
06

 :
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
. W

el
l P

er
m

it
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



10.B.a

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
 w

el
l p

er
m

it
  (

29
06

 :
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
. W

el
l P

er
m

it
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



10.B.a

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
 w

el
l p

er
m

it
  (

29
06

 :
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
. W

el
l P

er
m

it
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



10.B.a

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
 w

el
l p

er
m

it
  (

29
06

 :
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
. W

el
l P

er
m

it
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



10.B.a

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
 w

el
l p

er
m

it
  (

29
06

 :
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
. W

el
l P

er
m

it
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



10.B.a

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
 w

el
l p

er
m

it
  (

29
06

 :
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
. W

el
l P

er
m

it
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



10.B.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
 w

el
l p

er
m

it
  (

29
06

 :
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
. W

el
l P

er
m

it
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



10.B.a

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
 w

el
l p

er
m

it
  (

29
06

 :
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
. W

el
l P

er
m

it
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



10.B.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
 w

el
l p

er
m

it
  (

29
06

 :
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
. W

el
l P

er
m

it
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



10.B.a

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
 w

el
l p

er
m

it
  (

29
06

 :
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
. W

el
l P

er
m

it
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



10.B.a

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
 w

el
l p

er
m

it
  (

29
06

 :
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
. W

el
l P

er
m

it
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



10.B.a

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
 w

el
l p

er
m

it
  (

29
06

 :
 3

68
 R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d
. W

el
l P

er
m

it
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

)



 City Council Meeting: 11/30/23 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Planning/Zoning Item 
  Prepared By: Melanie Ellis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Melanie Ellis 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2902) DOC ID: 2902  

Updated: 11/16/2023 9:44 AM by Melanie Ellis  Page 1 

Special Use Permit Application submitted by TR Long 
Engineering, P.C., on behalf of Clifton Landfill Inc, for PIN # 7-

0913-01-010 (Clifton Blvd.) for outside storage for the 5.01 
acres site in a I-1 (Industrial) Zoning District 

Issue/Item: Special Use Permit Application submitted by TR Long Engineering, P.C., on 

behalf of Clifton Landfill Inc, for PIN # 7-0913-01-010 (Clifton Blvd.) for outside storage for 

the 5.01 acres site in a I-1 (Industrial) Zoning District 

 

Background: Existing land use is truck parking and closed landfill.  

 

Facts and Findings: Special use permit for outside storage for the 5.01 acre site.  

 

Funding: N/A 

 

Recommendation: The Planning Commission will hear this application on November 13, 

2023 at 3:30 PM. / UPDATE: The Planning Commission voted unanimously to 

recommend approval of the application.  
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Clifton Blvd-Special Use Permit-Outdoor Stg 2023-Application (PDF) 

• Clifton Blvd-Special Use Permit-Outdoor Stg 2023-AOPO(TR Long) (PDF) 

• Clifton Blvd-Special Use Permit-Outdoor Stg 2023-AOPO(Graves) (PDF) 

13.A

Packet Pg. 25



13.A.a

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lif
to

n
 B

lv
d

-S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

-O
u

td
o

o
r 

S
tg

 2
02

3-
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
29

02
 :

 S
.U

.P
. 7

09
13

 0
10

10
 C

lif
to

n
 B

lv
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3)



13.A.a

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lif
to

n
 B

lv
d

-S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

-O
u

td
o

o
r 

S
tg

 2
02

3-
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
29

02
 :

 S
.U

.P
. 7

09
13

 0
10

10
 C

lif
to

n
 B

lv
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3)



13.A.a

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lif
to

n
 B

lv
d

-S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

-O
u

td
o

o
r 

S
tg

 2
02

3-
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
29

02
 :

 S
.U

.P
. 7

09
13

 0
10

10
 C

lif
to

n
 B

lv
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3)



13.A.a

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lif
to

n
 B

lv
d

-S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

-O
u

td
o

o
r 

S
tg

 2
02

3-
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
29

02
 :

 S
.U

.P
. 7

09
13

 0
10

10
 C

lif
to

n
 B

lv
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3)



13.A.b

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lif
to

n
 B

lv
d

-S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

-O
u

td
o

o
r 

S
tg

 2
02

3-
A

O
P

O
(T

R
 L

o
n

g
) 

 (
29

02
 :

 S
.U

.P
. 7

09
13

 0
10

10
 C

lif
to

n
 B

lv
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3)



13.A.c

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lif
to

n
 B

lv
d

-S
p

ec
ia

l U
se

 P
er

m
it

-O
u

td
o

o
r 

S
tg

 2
02

3-
A

O
P

O
(G

ra
ve

s)
  (

29
02

 :
 S

.U
.P

. 7
09

13
 0

10
10

 C
lif

to
n

 B
lv

d
 N

O
V

 2
02

3)



 City Council Meeting: 11/30/23 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Planning/Zoning Item 
  Prepared By: Melanie Ellis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Melanie Ellis 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2903) DOC ID: 2903  

Updated: 11/16/2023 9:47 AM by Melanie Ellis  Page 1 

Site Plan Review Application submitted by Clifton Landfill 
Inc., for PIN # 70913 01010 (Clifton Blvd) for a General 

Development Site Plan to allow a outdoor storage area in a I-
1 (Industrial) Zoning district. 

Issue/Item: Site Plan Review Application submitted by Clifton Landfill Inc., for PIN # 

70913 01010 (Clifton Blvd) for a General Development Site Plan to allow a outdoor storage 

area in a I-1 (Industrial) Zoning district.  

 

Background: The subject property's existing use is truck parking and a closed landfill.  

 

Facts and Findings: The applicant is proposing a gravel lot for chassis container 

parking/storage. The development will consist of approximately 75 spaces, and an office 

trailer. The project will be accessed from Clifton Blvd.  The City of Port Wentworth Zoning 

Board of Appeals voted unanimously to approve a variance application, which included 0 

side setback for outside storage and a 25 foot setback from Clifton Blvd and a variance from 

the landscape and buffer requirements due to GA EPD rules for development on a former 

landfill site.  

 

Funding: N/A 

 

Recommendation: The Planning Commission will hear this application on November 13, 

2023 at 3:30 PM. / UPDATE: The Planning Commission voted unanimously to 

recommend approval of the application.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Clifton Blvd-Concept Site Plan-Proposed Dev. 2023-Application (PDF) 

13.B

Packet Pg. 32



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lif
to

n
 B

lv
d

-C
o

n
ce

p
t 

S
it

e 
P

la
n

-P
ro

p
o

se
d

 D
ev

. 2
02

3-
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
29

03
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

G
en

er
al

) 
70

91
3 

01
01

0 
C

lif
to

n
 B

lv
d



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

lif
to

n
 B

lv
d

-C
o

n
ce

p
t 

S
it

e 
P

la
n

-P
ro

p
o

se
d

 D
ev

. 2
02

3-
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
29

03
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

G
en

er
al

) 
70

91
3 

01
01

0 
C

lif
to

n
 B

lv
d



 City Council Meeting: 11/30/23 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: All 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Agreement 
  Prepared By: Zahnay Smoak 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Steve Davis 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2909) DOC ID: 2909  

Updated: 11/22/2023 9:30 AM by Zahnay Smoak  Page 1 

Fourth Amendment to the 2001 Water Service Agreement 

Issue/Item:  The water agreement between the City of Savannah and the City of Port 

Wentworth to provide water to the City of Port Wentworth is up for renewal.  An interim 

agreement is needed to allow the City of Savannah time to upgrade its water facilities and 

capabilities and to allow the City of Port Wentworth and the City of Savannah to negotiate 

specifics as to the next agreement.  
 

Background:    This agreement covers the gallons per day allocated to the City of Port 

Wentworth in accordance with the City of Port Wentworth’s forecasted water needs. This 

agreement would be the fourth amendment to the original 2001 agreement.     
 

Facts and Findings:  This proposed amendment will go into effect upon execution by both 

parties and will remain in effect until December 31, 2024 and sets the allocation to not 

exceed an aggregate monthly average of 1,518,200 gallons per day and maximum flow rate 

of 1,500 Gallons per minute per the terms of the amended agreement Port Wentworth will 

continue to pay the City of Savannah $1062 per ERU (Equivalent Residential Unit.) 

 

Funding:   NA 

 

Recommendation: Approve  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• 2023.11.30 - 4th Am to PW Water Service Agmt with Sav (DOCX) 

13.C

Packet Pg. 35



1 
 

STATE OF GEORGIA  ) FOURTH AMENDMENT TO 

     ) 2001 WATER SERVICE AGREEMENT 

COUNTY OF CHATHAM ) 

 

THIS AGREEMENT, hereinafter referred to as “Fourth Amendment”, made and 

entered into as of the 30th day of November, 2023, by and between the CITY OF 

PORT WENTWORTH, a municipal corporation chartered under the laws of the 

State of Georgia, hereinafter referred to as “Port Wentworth”, and THE MAYOR 

AND ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF SAVANNAH, a municipal corporation 

chartered under the laws of the State of Georgia, hereafter referred to as 

“Savannah”. 

 

- W I T N E S S E T H - 

 

WHEREAS, Savannah and Port Wentworth entered into a Water Service 

Agreement dated February 28, 2001 (hereinafter referred to as the "2001 

Agreement") providing for the purchase of potable water by Port Wentworth from 

Savannah; and  

 

WHEREAS, Savannah and Port Wentworth amended the 2001 Agreement by an 

agreement dated December 18, 2003 (hereinafter referred to as the "First 

Amendment to Water Service Agreement"); and 

 

WHEREAS, Savanah and Port Wentworth amended the 2001 Agreement by an 

agreement dated October 26, 2005 (hereinafter referred to as the "Second 

Amendment to Water Service Agreement"); and  

 

WHEREAS, Savannah and Port Wentworth amended the 2001 Agreement by an 

agreement dated April 27, 2017 (hereinafter referred to as the “Third Amendment 

to Water Service Agreement”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Port Wentworth has requested that certain additional amendments be 

made to the 2001 Agreement to address Port Wentworth’s growing population and 

developments; and 

 

WHEREAS, Article IX, Section III, Paragraph 1 of the Constitution of the State of 

Georgia provides that municipalities of the State may contract with one another for 

any period not exceeding fifty (50) years; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens of the Port Wentworth and the 

Savannah that this agreement be consummated and that such commitments be 

made. 

 

13.C.a

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3.

11
.3

0 
- 

4t
h

 A
m

 t
o

 P
W

 W
at

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

g
m

t 
w

it
h

 S
av

  (
29

09
 :

 F
o

u
rt

h
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 t

h
e 

20
01

 W
at

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

g
re

em
en

t)



2 
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereby made, the 

parties do agree to as follows: 

 

I. Intentions and Acknowledgments  

 

1. The Parties enter into this Fourth Amendment to address Port Wentworth’s 

near-term water supply, which has been that have been thoughtfully and 

thoroughly discussed between the two Parties.  

2. This Fourth Amendment is meant as a bridge to allow Savannah to advance 

and upgrade its water facilities and capabilities, so that Savannah can better 

allocate additional water supply capacity to Port Wentworth.  

3. Port Wentworth acknowledges that Savannah is in the process of 

undertaking a series of major water supply projects, including but not limited 

to increasing its production capacity, upgrading the pumping and piping 

systems, and modifications and upgrades to the source water intake, 

pumping, and transmission systems.  

4. Port Wentworth acknowledges that Savannah may allocate to Port 

Wentworth a pro-rata share of future capital improvements, with such 

allocation and increase supply to be in future Agreements or Amendments 

between the Parties.  

5. Savannah acknowledges that short- and long-term capital planning efforts 

should result a scaling back of the extent of future capital expenditures to its 

systems, which could result in scaling back the Capital Cost Recovery and 

Equivalent Residential Unit fees charged by Savannah in the future. To this 

end, in the future Savannah desires to negotiate for Port Wentworth’s 

groundwater permit capacity, provided the Georgia EPD approves such 

arrangement. Port Wentworth acknowledges it will favorably consider such 

an arrangement in the future, provided that the Parties negotiate and agree 

on mutually acceptable terms. The Parties acknowledge that such discussion 

and negotiations will likely be part of any ensuing or following Agreement or 

Amendment between the Parties on this subject.  

 

II. Amendments to the 2001 Agreement to Provide for Adequate Water Supply  

 

1. Daily Water Supply 

a. Savannah shall allocate water supply to Port Wentworth for an 

aggregate monthly average of 1,518,200 GPD (Gallons Per Day). 

b. The Parties agree such aggregate monthly average is in accordance 

with Port Wentworth’s forecasted water supply needs (see Exhibit 1) as 

well as the current status of Savannah’s water withdrawal and 

drinking water production permits with the Georgia EPD. 

13.C.a

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3.

11
.3

0 
- 

4t
h

 A
m

 t
o

 P
W

 W
at

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

g
m

t 
w

it
h

 S
av

  (
29

09
 :

 F
o

u
rt

h
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 t

h
e 

20
01

 W
at

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

g
re

em
en

t)



3 
 

c. In the event Port Wentworth exceeds the GPD limit established in this 

Fourth Amendment, Savannah may charge an equitable surcharge in 

an amount to be agreed upon by the two parties at that time. 

 

2. Maximum Flow Rate 

a. The cumulative maximum flow rate Savannah will make available to 

Port Wentworth at each of Port Wentworth’s three Water Delivery 

points shall be 1,500 GPM (Gallons Per Minute).  

b. The Parties agree this cumulative maximum flow rate is in place to 

ensure Savannah’s system can provide and sustain sufficient pressure 

and flow at the three Port Wentworth delivery points (i.e. metering 

stations).  

c. The Parties agree this cumulative maximum flow rate shall not apply 

to flow rate exceedances that could occur which are directly 

attributable to the Port Wentworth Fire Department (PWFD), the 

PWFD’s firefighting activities, or any other local fire department 

utilizing the Port Wentworth water system (e.g. a Savannah Fire 

Department firefighting event using the Port Wentworth water 

system).  

d. To help manage this cumulative maximum flow rate, Port Wentworth 

will strive to fill its elevated water storage tanks during off peak time 

periods: such periods being from 11:00 PM to 5:00 AM every day. 

 

3. Reselling Restriction  

a. Port Wentworth shall not resell the water provided pursuant to this 

Amendment and Agreement to any other municipal water provider 

without proper written authorization and authority from Savannah.  

 

4. Equivalent Residential Unit 

a. Port Wentworth shall pay Savannah $900 per ERU (Equivalent 

Residential Unit).  

 

III. Term and Renewal of Amendment 

 

1. Term and Renewal of Amendment 

a. This Fourth Amendment shall be effective upon its execution by both 

Parties. 

b. This Fourth Amendment shall remain in effect until December 31, 

2024.  

13.C.a

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3.

11
.3

0 
- 

4t
h

 A
m

 t
o

 P
W

 W
at

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

g
m

t 
w

it
h

 S
av

  (
29

09
 :

 F
o

u
rt

h
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 t

h
e 

20
01

 W
at

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

g
re

em
en

t)



4 
 

c. This Fourth Amendment may be renewed by written consent of the 

Parties.  

 

IV. Exhibit 1 

 

Exhibit 1 

 

 
 

 

V. All other Sections of the 2001 Agreement and the First , Second, and Third 

Amendments to Water Service Agreement Remain in Effect.  

 

1. All sections of the 2001 Agreement and the First, Second, and Third 

Amendments to Water Service Agreement not amended by this Fourth 

Amendment remain in full force and effect as originally set forth in said 

agreements. 

2. All sections or provisions of the 2001 Agreement and the First, Second, and 

Third Amendments to Water Service Agreement that are amended by this 

Fourth Amendment are considered amended pursuant herein. 

 

 

[ SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE ] 

 

13.C.a

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3.

11
.3

0 
- 

4t
h

 A
m

 t
o

 P
W

 W
at

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

g
m

t 
w

it
h

 S
av

  (
29

09
 :

 F
o

u
rt

h
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 t

h
e 

20
01

 W
at

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

g
re

em
en

t)



5 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Port Wentworth and Savannah have caused this 

agreement to be executed by their proper corporate officers with their seals duly 

attached and attested to as of the day and year first written above. 

 

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH   THE MAYOR AND  

ALDERMEN OF 

       THE CITY OF SAVANNAH 

 

 

BY:       BY:       

Mayor       City Manager 

 

DATE:       DATE:      

 

 

 

ATTEST:      ATTEST:      

Clerk of Port Wentworth City Council  Clerk of Savannah City Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13.C.a

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

02
3.

11
.3

0 
- 

4t
h

 A
m

 t
o

 P
W

 W
at

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

g
m

t 
w

it
h

 S
av

  (
29

09
 :

 F
o

u
rt

h
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 t

h
e 

20
01

 W
at

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 A

g
re

em
en

t)



 City Council Meeting: 11/30/23 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: All 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Ordinance 
  Prepared By: Zahnay Smoak 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Steve Davis 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2907) DOC ID: 2907  

Updated: 11/22/2023 10:20 AM by Zahnay Smoak  Page 1 

Amending Chapter 17.1 Human Resources Policy - 1st 
Reading 

Issue/Item:   

The City’s Human Resources Policy is codified in the City’s Code of Ordinances. This means 

that any changes must go through the ordinance process, and creates an extremely 

cumbersome process to update and stay current with changing Human Resources guidelines 

and best practices.  

 

Background:     

Chapter 17.1 is a vestige of the previous strong-Mayor form of government, where the 

Mayor used to be the chief administrative officer of the City. The City is now a strong-City 

Manager form of government with the City Manager being the chief administrative officer of 

the City. No other department or department’s Standard Operating Procedures are codified 

in the Code of Ordinances. 

 

Additionally, Chapter 17.1 has not been amended since 2015. And between 2009 and 2015 

it was amended 8 separate times - showing the need to stay current with Human Resources 

policy and the cumbersome nature of having it codified as an Ordinance.  

 

Facts and Findings:   

The City Charter vests the City Manager as the chief administrative officer of the city. As 

such, Human Resources and the Human Resources Policy are within his purview. Repealing 

Chapter 17.1 would bring this operating procedure of the City in line with other operating 

procedures, and allow a more responsive and compliant Human Resources Policy for all City 

employees.  

 

Funding:   NA 

 

Recommendation: Approve  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• COPW - Ord - HR Policy (DOCX) 

14.A

Packet Pg. 41



 Page 1 / 2 

ORDINANCE NO. 23-12-01 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

COUNTY OF CHATHAM 

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMEND CHAPTER 17.1 HUMAN RESOURCES POLICY  

OF THE CITY’S CODE OF ORDINANCES 

 

 

WHEREAS, it is necessary from time to time to modify the City’s ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS the Mayor and City Council is tasked with the authority to adopt and provide for 

such ordinances, resolutions, rules, and regulations which it deems necessary, expedient, or 

helpful for the peace, good order, protection of life and property, health, welfare, sanitation, 

comfort, convenience, prosperity, and well-being of the inhabitants of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Port Wentworth is granted the power that it may adopt rules and 

regulations regarding personnel policies but is not obligated to codify such; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Manager is the chief executive officer and administrator of the City, and 

shall be responsible to the City Council for the administration of all City affairs placed in the 

City Manager’s charge; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Port Wentworth desires to update its Ordinance on Human Resources 

Policy to reflect the City Manager’s role as chief executive officer of the City, and for the City 

Manager to work with the Human Resources Department to produce policies consistent with the 

best practices and high standards expected for City employees; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, that while in regular session THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH HEREBY ORDAIN as follows: 

 

I. The City’s Human Resources Policy Ordinance 

 The entirety of Chapter 17.1, Human Resources Policy, is repealed.  

 

II. The City Manager is directed to work with the Human Resources Department to produce 

policies consistent with the best practices and high standards expected of City employees.  

 

III. All laws and parts of laws in conflict with this Act are hereby repealed. 

IV. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage and adoption.  

 

 

[ SIGNATURE ON FOLLOWING PAGE ] 

 

 

 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

O
P

W
 -

 O
rd

 -
 H

R
 P

o
lic

y 
 (

29
07

 :
 A

m
en

d
in

g
 C

h
ap

te
r 

17
.1

 H
u

m
an

 R
es

o
u

rc
es

 P
o

lic
y)



 Page 2 / 2 

 

SO ORDAINED this the    day of      , 2023. 

 

 

       Approved: 

 

 

             

       Gary Norton, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

     

Zahnay Smoak, City Clerk 

 

First reading:        (date) 

 

Second reading:       (date) 

14.A.a

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

O
P

W
 -

 O
rd

 -
 H

R
 P

o
lic

y 
 (

29
07

 :
 A

m
en

d
in

g
 C

h
ap

te
r 

17
.1

 H
u

m
an

 R
es

o
u

rc
es

 P
o

lic
y)



 City Council Meeting: 11/30/23 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: All 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Ordinance 
  Prepared By: Zahnay Smoak 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Steve Davis 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2908) DOC ID: 2908  

Updated: 11/22/2023 10:20 AM by Zahnay Smoak  Page 1 

Street Parking Ordinance- 1st Reading 

Issue/Item:   

On street parking has become an issue, with school busses and emergency vehicles having 

to navigate narrow streets, and some cars parked for long extended periods of time in one 

spot. This is both a safety as well as quality of life issue.  

 

Background:     

Street parking is a problem in much of Port Wentworth, and especially in the residential 

areas of the City. In some developments the streets are narrow, some were not designed 

for any on street parking, and in some areas on street parking in residential areas makes 

simply driving around one’s neighborhood dangerous and at times impossible as impassible.  

 

Facts and Findings:   

The City hosted a town hall on this topic, and has spent time since that town hall 

researching and internally discussing how best to address this issue. The City, in 

consultation with community partners, has determined that odd-even side parking 

coinciding with either odd or even months is an equitable and realistic solution to address 

this problem. This Ordinance would allow on street parking on the odd side of the street in 

odd numbered months, and on the even side of the street in even numbered months. Cars 

would still have to park in the correct direction, and would be fully prohibited from parking 

on many thoroughfares unless in clearly marked parking spots.  

 

This would be a new ordinance for the City. City staff including the Police Department, 

would roll out enforcement so that citizens are aware of the new ordinance and changes 

before escalating penalties go into effect.  

 

Funding:   NA 

 

Recommendation: Approve  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• PW - Ord - Residential Street Parking (DOCX) 

14.B

Packet Pg. 44



Page 1 / 6 

ORDINANCE NO. 23-11-04 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

COUNTY OF CHATHAM 

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO CREATE CHAPTER 13, ARTICLE II, RESIDENTIAL STREET 

PARKING OF THE CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH CODE OF ORDINANCES  

 

 

WHEREAS, it is necessary from time to time to modify the City’s ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS the Mayor and City Council is tasked with the authority to adopt and provide for 

such ordinances, resolutions, rules, and regulations which it deems necessary, expedient, or 

helpful for the peace, good order, protection of life and property, health, welfare, sanitation, 

comfort, convenience, prosperity, and well-being of the inhabitants of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Port Wentworth is granted the power to regulate the operation of motor 

vehicles and public parking and to exercise control over all traffic, upon or across the highways, 

streets, roads, alleys, and walkways of the city; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Port Wentworth desires to update its Chapter 13, Motor Vehicles and 

Traffic to ensure safety and free movement upon the roadways of the city; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, that while in regular session THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH HEREBY ORDAIN as follows: 

 

The Code of Ordinance, Chapter 13, Motor Vehicles and Traffic, is amended as follows: 

 

I. The entirety of the existing Chapter 13 – Motor Vehicles and Traffic is placed into the 

newly created Article 1 of Chapter 13, titled “Article I - Miscellaneous Motor Vehicle 

and Traffic”, and shall retain the existing Code Section numbers, Sections 13-1 

through 13-13. 

 

II. Sec. 13-6 is hereby repealed and shall be “Reserved”. 

 

III. Sections 13-14 through 13-49 shall be designated as “Reserved” in Article I of 

Chapter 13. 

 

IV. There is created a new Article 2 of Chapter 13, titled “Article II – Residential Street 

Parking”, which shall read as follows: 

 

<< >> 

 

Art. II – Residential Street Parking 

 

14.B.a

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

W
 -

 O
rd

 -
 R

es
id

en
ti

al
 S

tr
ee

t 
P

ar
ki

n
g

  (
29

08
 :

 S
tr

ee
t 

P
ar

ki
n

g
 O

rd
in

an
ce

)



Page 2 / 6 

Sec. 13-50 – Intent and Purpose 

(a) It is the intent and purpose of this Article to ensure the safe and adequate 

parking for automobiles for the convenience and safety of all residents, 

visitors, workers, and persons with disabilities within the residential areas of 

the city.  

(b) It is further the intent and purpose of this Article to provide adequate and safe 

rights of way for all vehicles throughout the residential areas of the city.  

(c) The city enacts this article upon a finding of fact that unfettered stopping, 

standing, or parking of vehicles upon the residential roadways of the city is 

dangerous to those using the roadway where the stopping, standing, or parking 

of vehicles does unduly interfere with the free movement of traffic thereon. 

 

Sec. 13-51 – Applicability 

(a) The provisions of this Article prohibiting the standing or parking of a vehicle 

shall apply at all times or at those times herein specified or as indicated on 

official signs, except when it is necessary to stop a vehicle to avoid conflict 

with other traffic or in compliance with the directions of a police officer or 

official traffic control device.  

(b) It shall be the duty of the city public development services director and the 

city chief of police to determine whether and where to install appropriate 

official traffic control devices giving  additional notice thereof this article. 

(c) The provisions of this article shall not apply to the driver of any vehicle which 

is disabled while on the roadway in such a manner and to such extent that it is 

impossible to avoid stopping and temporarily leaving such disabled vehicle in 

such position. (see O.C.G.A. § 40-6-204). 

(d) The provisions of this article shall not apply to public transit vehicles while at 

designated official stops or stands.  

(e) The provisions of this article shall not apply to any vehicle used solely for the 

purpose of collecting municipal solid waste while collecting such waste or 

materials; provided however that such vehicle shall maintain flashing hazard 

lights at all times that it is engaged in stopping or standing for the purpose of 

waste or materials collection.  

 

Sec. 13-52 – General Prohibitions 

(a) No vehicle shall be standing or parked on any street or highway at or near any 

intersection that would create a hazard by obscuring vision on ingress or 

egress at said intersection. Standing or parked vehicles shall be parked a 

minimum of 30 feet from any intersection.  

(b) Freight-carrying vehicles are prohibited in all residentially zoned (R-1, R-2, 

R-3, R-4 and R-5), neighborhood commercial zoned (C-1), and planned use 

development zoned (PUD) areas except when actively delivering or receiving 

goods. No person shall stop, stand or park a freight-carrying vehicle for any 

purpose or length of time other than for the expeditious unloading and 

delivery or pickup and loading of materials in all residentially zoned (R-1, R-

2, R-3, R-4 and R-5), neighborhood commercial zoned (C-1), and planned use 

development zoned (PUD) areas.  

14.B.a

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

W
 -

 O
rd

 -
 R

es
id

en
ti

al
 S

tr
ee

t 
P

ar
ki

n
g

  (
29

08
 :

 S
tr

ee
t 

P
ar

ki
n

g
 O

rd
in

an
ce

)



Page 3 / 6 

 

Sec. 13-53 – On Street Parking, Residential Areas 

(a) As provided in this article, every vehicle stopped or parked upon a roadway 

shall be stopped or parked parallel to the curb or edge of the roadway, and in 

the direction of authorized traffic movement. 

(b) As provided in this article, every vehicle stopped or parked upon a roadway 

shall be stopped or parked with the right-hand wheels parallel to and within 12 

inches of the curb or as practicable to the edge of the right-hand shoulder.  

(c) As provided in this article, no vehicle shall stop, stand, or park: 

1) On a sidewalk;  

2) Within an intersection; or 

3) At any place where official signs prohibit stopping or parking. 

(d) As provided in this article, no vehicle shall stop, stand, or park, except 

momentarily to pick up or discharge a passenger or passengers: 

1) In front of a public or private driveway; 

2) Within 15 feet of a fire hydrant; 

3) Within 20 feet of a crosswalk at an intersection; 

4) Within 30 feet upon the approach to any flashing signal, stop sign, 

yield sign, or traffic-control signal located at the side of a roadway; 

5) Within 20 feet of the driveway entrance to any fire station or on the 

side of a street opposite the entrance to any fire station within 75 feet 

of such entrance; or 

6) At any place where official signs prohibit standing. 

(e) The provisions of this section shall apply to residentially zoned (R-1, R-2, R-

3, R-4 and R-5), neighborhood commercial zoned (C-1), and planned use 

development zoned (PUD) areas. 

 

Sec. 13-54 – On Street Parking, Odd-Even Parking 

(a) As provided in this article, every vehicle stopped or parked on a roadway 

within all residentially zoned (R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4 and R-5), neighborhood 

commercial zoned (C-1), and planned use development zoned (PUD), areas 

shall park on the side of street with odd numbered addresses in odd months, 

and shall park on the side of the street with even numbered addresses in even 

months. 

1) Odd months: January, March, May, July, September, and December. 

2) Even months: February, April, June, August, October, and December. 

(b) As otherwise provided and pursuant to this article, in order to facilitate orderly 

and safe transition between months, vehicles may park on either the even or 

odd side of the roadway between 10:00 PM on the final day of a month and 

10:00 AM on the first day of a month.  

(c) A listing of roadways pursuant to this section can be found in Sec. 13-70. 

 

Sec. 13-55 – On Street Parking, Residential Thoroughfares  

(a) As provided in this article, no vehicle shall stop or park on a residential 

thoroughfare except in a designated parking space.  

14.B.a

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

W
 -

 O
rd

 -
 R

es
id

en
ti

al
 S

tr
ee

t 
P

ar
ki

n
g

  (
29

08
 :

 S
tr

ee
t 

P
ar

ki
n

g
 O

rd
in

an
ce

)



Page 4 / 6 

(b) A listing of residential thoroughfares pursuant to this section can be found in 

Sec. 13-71. 

 

Sec. 13-56 – 13-59 – Reserved. 

 

Sec. 13-60 –Violations, In General 

(a) Violations of this article are per se violations for the purposes of scienter.  

(b) Each calendar day constitutes a new and separate offense under this article. 

(c) For the purposes of determining penalties pursuant to this article, the 12 

month calculation shall refer to the date of violations.  

(d) There is a rebuttable presumption that the registered owner of any vehicle in 

violation of this article is the responsible party upon whom to serve the notice 

of violation and to receive any fines or penalties associated therewith.  

(e) In the event of a leased vehicle: 

1) Upon notice of a violation, if the owner notifies the city court clerk of 

the name and address of the lessee of the vehicle on the date the 

violation occurred, then the owner of any leased vehicle shall not be 

liable for violation of this article while such vehicle is leased to 

another and such leased vehicle was not in the owner’s possession or 

control at the time of the violation.  

2) If the owner so notifies the city court clerk, then the owner shall be 

excused from appearing on court for the violation.  

3) If the owner fails to submit the notice within 5 business days prior to 

the court date, then the court may find the owner of the vehicle liable 

for the violation.  

 

Sec. 13-61 - Enforcement 

(a) Jurisdiction for enforcement of this article shall lie in the city municipal court.  

(b) The police department or the city is authorized to issue a warning, citation, or 

other penalties allowed by law for violations of this article. Other such 

penalties may include, but are not limited to: suspension of vehicle 

registration and towing of vehicle. 

(c) If a vehicle is towed, then the vehicle owner shall be responsible for any costs 

related to the vehicle’s towing in addition to any fines or other penalties levied 

for the violation.  

(d) Nothing in this section limits or prevents the police department or the city 

from utilizing its discretion in whether to issue a warning, a citation, or other 

penalty pursuant to this article.  

(e) The police department or the city is authorized to immediately tow or 

otherwise move a vehicle, without regard to prior violations, regardless of 

whether the vehicle is in violation of this article, upon a determination that 

such vehicle poses an immediate and unavoidable risk of danger to those 

using the roadway where the stopped, standing, or parked vehicle does unduly 

interfere with the free movement of traffic thereon. 

 

Sec. 13-62 – Penalties   

14.B.a

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

W
 -

 O
rd

 -
 R

es
id

en
ti

al
 S

tr
ee

t 
P

ar
ki

n
g

  (
29

08
 :

 S
tr

ee
t 

P
ar

ki
n

g
 O

rd
in

an
ce

)



Page 5 / 6 

(a) Violation of Sec. 13-52 and 13-53 may incur the following penalties: 

1) Upon first and second violation within a 12 month period – a fine not 

to exceed $100. 

2) Upon third and subsequent violations within a 12 month period – a 

fine not to exceed $500, towing of vehicle, and suspension of vehicle 

registration. 

(b) Violation of Sec. 13-54 and 13-55 may incur the following penalties: 

1) Upon first violation within a 12 month period – a fine not to exceed 

$100. 

2) Upon second and subsequent violations within a 12 month period – a 

fine not to exceed $500, towing of vehicle, and suspension of vehicle 

registration. 

 

Sec. 13-63 – 13-69 – Reserved. 

 

Sec. 13-70 – Odd-Even Roadways, Listing 

(a) The roadways applicable to Sec. 13-54 are as follows: 

1) All highways, roads, and streets in residentially zoned (R-1, R-2, R-3, 

R-4 and R-5), neighborhood commercial zoned (C-1), and planned use 

development zoned (PUD) areas, unless otherwise noted in this article. 

 

Sec. 13-71 – Residential Thoroughfares, Listing 

(a) The residential thoroughfares applicable to Sec. 13-55 are as follows: 

1) Lakeside Boulevard; 

2) Parkside Boulevard; 

3) Magnolia Boulevard; 

4) Bonnybridge Road; 

5) South Coastal Highway, south of Bonnybridge Road and north of 

Grange Road; and 

6) Crossgate Road, east of Jimmy Deloach Parkway and west of Ray 

Street. 

 

Sec. 13-72 – 13-79 – Reserved. 

 

<< >> 

 

V. The Police Department and the City is directed to work with the citizens during 

implementation and enforcement of this residential street parking ordinance. The 

Mayor and Council understand there will be a learning curve, and direct the Police 

Department and the City to highlight education and ramp up enforcement, while 

maintaining safety and the free movement of traffic upon the city’s roadways.  

 

VI. All laws and parts of laws in conflict with this Act are hereby repealed. 

 

VII. This Ordinance shall become effective upon its passage and adoption.  

 

14.B.a

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

W
 -

 O
rd

 -
 R

es
id

en
ti

al
 S

tr
ee

t 
P

ar
ki

n
g

  (
29

08
 :

 S
tr

ee
t 

P
ar

ki
n

g
 O

rd
in

an
ce

)



Page 6 / 6 

 

 

SO ORDAINED this the    day of      , 2023. 

 

 

       Approved: 

 

 

             

       Gary Norton, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

     

Zahnay Smoak, City Clerk 

 

First reading:        (date) 

 

Second reading:       (date) 

 

14.B.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

W
 -

 O
rd

 -
 R

es
id

en
ti

al
 S

tr
ee

t 
P

ar
ki

n
g

  (
29

08
 :

 S
tr

ee
t 

P
ar

ki
n

g
 O

rd
in

an
ce

)



 City Council Meeting: 11/30/23 07:00 PM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 
 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Ordinance 
  Prepared By: Melanie Ellis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Melanie Ellis 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2904) DOC ID: 2904  

Updated: 11/16/2023 9:48 AM by Melanie Ellis  Page 1 

Zoning Map Amendment Application submitted by Steven & 
Janet Hester for PIN # 70978 05016 (440 Meinhard Rd) to 

Rezone from R-1 (Single-Family Residential) to C-2 
(Community Business) Zoning District (1st Reading) 

Issue/Item: Zoning Map Amendment Application submitted by Steven & Janet Hester for 

PIN # 70978 05016 (440 Meinhard Rd) to Rezone from R-1 (Single-Family Residential) to 

C-2 (General Commercial) Zoning District (1st Reading). 

 

Background: This parcel is currently being used as a single family home residence. There 

are several buildings on the subject property.  

 

Facts and Findings: The total amount of property to be rezoned is 12.27 acres. The 

applicant is requesting to rezone the property from R-1 (Single-Family Residential) to C-2(General 
Commercial). The applicant submitted a concept of uses such as a Luxury Hotel & Convention Center 
and Institutional Development.  Access will be off of Meinhard Road. According to the 2021 City 

of Port Wentworth Comprehensive Plan this property is under the Suburban Character Area. 

This project is located in City Council District 3. 

 

Funding: N/A 

 

Recommendation: The Planning Commission will hear this application on November 13, 

2023 at 3:30 P.M. / UPDATE: The Planning Commission voted unanimously to 

recommend to Deny the application.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• ZMA Hester Farms 440 Meinhard 2023 - Application (PDF) 

14.C

Packet Pg. 51



14.C.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 H
es

te
r 

F
ar

m
s 

44
0 

M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 2
02

3 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
04

 :
 Z

M
A

 7
09

78
 0

50
16

 4
40

 M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 R
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3 

1s
t 

R
ea

d
in

g
)



14.C.a

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 H
es

te
r 

F
ar

m
s 

44
0 

M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 2
02

3 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
04

 :
 Z

M
A

 7
09

78
 0

50
16

 4
40

 M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 R
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3 

1s
t 

R
ea

d
in

g
)



14.C.a

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 H
es

te
r 

F
ar

m
s 

44
0 

M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 2
02

3 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
04

 :
 Z

M
A

 7
09

78
 0

50
16

 4
40

 M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 R
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3 

1s
t 

R
ea

d
in

g
)



14.C.a

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 H
es

te
r 

F
ar

m
s 

44
0 

M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 2
02

3 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
04

 :
 Z

M
A

 7
09

78
 0

50
16

 4
40

 M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 R
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3 

1s
t 

R
ea

d
in

g
)



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=76482226&key1=2013&key2=551&county=25&countyname=CHATHAM&userid=189537&… 1/11

14.C.a

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 H
es

te
r 

F
ar

m
s 

44
0 

M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 2
02

3 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
04

 :
 Z

M
A

 7
09

78
 0

50
16

 4
40

 M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 R
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3 

1s
t 

R
ea

d
in

g
)



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=76482226&key1=2013&key2=551&county=25&countyname=CHATHAM&userid=189537&… 2/11

14.C.a

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 H
es

te
r 

F
ar

m
s 

44
0 

M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 2
02

3 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
04

 :
 Z

M
A

 7
09

78
 0

50
16

 4
40

 M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 R
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3 

1s
t 

R
ea

d
in

g
)



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=76482226&key1=2013&key2=551&county=25&countyname=CHATHAM&userid=189537&… 3/11

14.C.a

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 H
es

te
r 

F
ar

m
s 

44
0 

M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 2
02

3 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
04

 :
 Z

M
A

 7
09

78
 0

50
16

 4
40

 M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 R
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3 

1s
t 

R
ea

d
in

g
)



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=76482226&key1=2013&key2=551&county=25&countyname=CHATHAM&userid=189537&… 4/11

14.C.a

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 H
es

te
r 

F
ar

m
s 

44
0 

M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 2
02

3 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
04

 :
 Z

M
A

 7
09

78
 0

50
16

 4
40

 M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 R
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3 

1s
t 

R
ea

d
in

g
)



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=76482226&key1=2013&key2=551&county=25&countyname=CHATHAM&userid=189537&… 5/11

14.C.a

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 H
es

te
r 

F
ar

m
s 

44
0 

M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 2
02

3 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
04

 :
 Z

M
A

 7
09

78
 0

50
16

 4
40

 M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 R
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3 

1s
t 

R
ea

d
in

g
)



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=76482226&key1=2013&key2=551&county=25&countyname=CHATHAM&userid=189537&… 6/11

14.C.a

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 H
es

te
r 

F
ar

m
s 

44
0 

M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 2
02

3 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
04

 :
 Z

M
A

 7
09

78
 0

50
16

 4
40

 M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 R
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3 

1s
t 

R
ea

d
in

g
)



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=76482226&key1=2013&key2=551&county=25&countyname=CHATHAM&userid=189537&… 7/11

14.C.a

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 H
es

te
r 

F
ar

m
s 

44
0 

M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 2
02

3 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
04

 :
 Z

M
A

 7
09

78
 0

50
16

 4
40

 M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 R
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3 

1s
t 

R
ea

d
in

g
)



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=76482226&key1=2013&key2=551&county=25&countyname=CHATHAM&userid=189537&… 8/11

14.C.a

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 H
es

te
r 

F
ar

m
s 

44
0 

M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 2
02

3 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
04

 :
 Z

M
A

 7
09

78
 0

50
16

 4
40

 M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 R
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3 

1s
t 

R
ea

d
in

g
)



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=76482226&key1=2013&key2=551&county=25&countyname=CHATHAM&userid=189537&… 9/11

14.C.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 H
es

te
r 

F
ar

m
s 

44
0 

M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 2
02

3 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
04

 :
 Z

M
A

 7
09

78
 0

50
16

 4
40

 M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 R
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3 

1s
t 

R
ea

d
in

g
)



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=76482226&key1=2013&key2=551&county=25&countyname=CHATHAM&userid=189537… 10/11

14.C.a

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 H
es

te
r 

F
ar

m
s 

44
0 

M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 2
02

3 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
04

 :
 Z

M
A

 7
09

78
 0

50
16

 4
40

 M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 R
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3 

1s
t 

R
ea

d
in

g
)



https://search.gsccca.org/Imaging/HTML5Viewer.aspx?id=76482226&key1=2013&key2=551&county=25&countyname=CHATHAM&userid=189537… 11/11

14.C.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 H
es

te
r 

F
ar

m
s 

44
0 

M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 2
02

3 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
04

 :
 Z

M
A

 7
09

78
 0

50
16

 4
40

 M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 R
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3 

1s
t 

R
ea

d
in

g
)



14.C.a

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 H
es

te
r 

F
ar

m
s 

44
0 

M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 2
02

3 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
04

 :
 Z

M
A

 7
09

78
 0

50
16

 4
40

 M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 R
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3 

1s
t 

R
ea

d
in

g
)



14.C.a

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 H
es

te
r 

F
ar

m
s 

44
0 

M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 2
02

3 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
04

 :
 Z

M
A

 7
09

78
 0

50
16

 4
40

 M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 R
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3 

1s
t 

R
ea

d
in

g
)



14.C.a

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 H
es

te
r 

F
ar

m
s 

44
0 

M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 2
02

3 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
04

 :
 Z

M
A

 7
09

78
 0

50
16

 4
40

 M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 R
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3 

1s
t 

R
ea

d
in

g
)



14.C.a

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 H
es

te
r 

F
ar

m
s 

44
0 

M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 2
02

3 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
04

 :
 Z

M
A

 7
09

78
 0

50
16

 4
40

 M
ei

n
h

ar
d



14.C.a

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 Z

M
A

 H
es

te
r 

F
ar

m
s 

44
0 

M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 2
02

3 
- 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
  (

29
04

 :
 Z

M
A

 7
09

78
 0

50
16

 4
40

 M
ei

n
h

ar
d

 R
d

 N
O

V
 2

02
3 

1s
t 

R
ea

d
in

g
)


	Agenda Packet
	1. Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance
	2. Roll Call - Clerk of Council
	Roll Call

	3. Approval of Agenda
	4. Recognition of Special Guests
	5. Public Comments - Registered Speakers
	6. Elections & Appointments
	7. Adoption of Minutes
	A. Regular Council Meeting Minutes - October 26, 2023

	8. Communications & Petitions
	9. Committee Reports
	10. Consent Agenda
	A. 2905 : 711 Hwy 30 Well Permit Application
	Policy Paper: 2905 : 711 Hwy 30 Well Permit Application
	a. 711 Hwy 30 well permit

	B. 2906 : 368 Rice Hope Plantation Rd. Well Permit Application
	Policy Paper: 2906 : 368 Rice Hope Plantation Rd. Well Permit Application
	a. 368 Rice Hope Plantation Rd well permit


	11. Unfinished Business
	12. Call Meeting To Order
	13. New Business
	A. 2902 : S.U.P. 70913 01010 Clifton Blvd NOV 2023
	Policy Paper: 2902 : S.U.P. 70913 01010 Clifton Blvd NOV 2023
	a. Clifton Blvd-Special Use Permit-Outdoor Stg 2023-Application
	b. Clifton Blvd-Special Use Permit-Outdoor Stg 2023-AOPO(TR Long)
	c. Clifton Blvd-Special Use Permit-Outdoor Stg 2023-AOPO(Graves)

	B. 2903 : Site Plan Application (General) 70913 01010 Clifton Blvd NOV 2023
	Policy Paper: 2903 : Site Plan Application (General) 70913 01010 Clifton Blvd NOV 2023
	a. Clifton Blvd-Concept Site Plan-Proposed Dev. 2023-Application

	C. 2909 : Fourth Amendment to the 2001 Water Service Agreement
	Policy Paper: 2909 : Fourth Amendment to the 2001 Water Service Agreement
	a. 2023.11.30 - 4th Am to PW Water Service Agmt with Sav


	14. Resolutions/Ordinances/Proclamations
	A. 2907 : Amending Chapter 17.1 Human Resources Policy
	Policy Paper: 2907 : Amending Chapter 17.1 Human Resources Policy
	a. COPW - Ord - HR Policy

	B. 2908 : Street Parking Ordinance
	Policy Paper: 2908 : Street Parking Ordinance
	a. PW - Ord - Residential Street Parking

	C. 2904 : ZMA 70978 05016 440 Meinhard Rd NOV 2023 1st Reading
	Policy Paper: 2904 : ZMA 70978 05016 440 Meinhard Rd NOV 2023 1st Reading
	a. ZMA Hester Farms 440 Meinhard 2023 - Application


	15. Executive Session
	A. Litigation
	B. Personnel
	C. Real Estate

	16. Adjournment

	Appendix
	10.A · 2905 : 711 Hwy 30 Well Permit Application
	10.A.a · 711 Hwy 30 well permit

	10.B · 2906 : 368 Rice Hope Plantation Rd. Well Permit Application
	10.B.a · 368 Rice Hope Plantation Rd well permit

	13.A · 2902 : S.U.P. 70913 01010 Clifton Blvd NOV 2023
	13.A.a · Clifton Blvd-Special Use Permit-Outdoor Stg 2023-Application
	13.A.b · Clifton Blvd-Special Use Permit-Outdoor Stg 2023-AOPO(TR Long)
	13.A.c · Clifton Blvd-Special Use Permit-Outdoor Stg 2023-AOPO(Graves)

	13.B · 2903 : Site Plan Application (General) 70913 01010 Clifton Blvd NOV 2023
	13.B.a · Clifton Blvd-Concept Site Plan-Proposed Dev. 2023-Application

	13.C · 2909 : Fourth Amendment to the 2001 Water Service Agreement
	13.C.a · 2023.11.30 - 4th Am to PW Water Service Agmt with Sav

	14.A · 2907 : Amending Chapter 17.1 Human Resources Policy
	14.A.a · COPW - Ord - HR Policy

	14.B · 2908 : Street Parking Ordinance
	14.B.a · PW - Ord - Residential Street Parking

	14.C · 2904 : ZMA 70978 05016 440 Meinhard Rd NOV 2023 1st Reading
	14.C.a · ZMA Hester Farms 440 Meinhard 2023 - Application



